
 
 

BOARD 

OF 

COMMISSIONERS 
 

 

 

January 20
th

, 2015 

 

7:00 PM - Regular Meeting 

 

Historic Courtroom 

Courthouse Complex 

Page 1 of 78



 

Agenda   -  Camden County Board of Commissioners January 20
th
, 2015 

  Page 1 of 2 

This agenda is only a tentative schedule of matters the Commissioners may address at their meeting and 

all items found on it may be deleted, amended or deferred. The Commissioners may also, in their absolute 

discretion, consider matters not shown on this agenda. 
 

Please turn Cell Phone ringers off during the meeting. 
 

Agenda 
 

Camden County Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting 

January 20
th

, 2015 

7:00 P.M. - Regular Meeting 

Historic Courtroom, Courthouse Complex 

Camden, North Carolina 
 

 

7:00 P.M. Call to Order - Chairman Michael McLain 

 

 

7:00 P.M. Welcome 

 

 

 Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance – Commissioner Garry Meiggs 

 
 

ITEM 1. Public Comments 
 

It is requested that comments be limited to (2-3) minutes. The length and number of 

comments may be limited upon the Chairman’s discretion due to scheduling and other 

issues. 

 
 

ITEM 2. Consideration of Agenda (For discussion and possible action) 

 

 

ITEM 3 Presentations 
 

A. Friends of the Camden Library ................................................................. (Pgs.4-5) 

 

 

ITEM 4. Public Hearings  
 

A. Amendment to Building Inspections and Planning Department  

 Fee Schedule .......................................................................................... (Pgs. 6-11) 

 

B. Economic Development Incentive ....................................................... (Pgs. 12-20) 

 

 

ITEM 5. New Business (For discussion and possible action) 
 

A. Point of Dispensing Site Memorandum of Understanding .................... (Pg. 21-29) 

 

 

Page 2 of 78



 

Agenda   -  Camden County Board of Commissioners January 20
th
, 2015 

  Page 2 of 2 

ITEM 6. Consent Agenda (All items listed below are routine and will be approved by one 

motion. Separate discussion of an item(s) will be held by request of a member of the 

Board.) 
 

A. Draft Minutes .................................................................................. (Attachment A) 

B. Budget Amendments BA015-BA017 .................................................. (Pgs. 31-34) 

C. School Budget Amendments ............................................................... (Pgs. 35-45) 

D. Tax Collection Report - December  ..................................................... (Pgs. 46-47) 

 

ITEM 7. Commissioner's Report (For discussion and possible action) 

 

ITEM 8. County Manager's Report (For discussion and possible action) 

 

ITEM 9. Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies   ........................... (Pgs. 48-78) 

 

A. Sheriff – December Monthly Report   ........................................................ (Pg. 49) 

B. RC&D Winter Newsletter .................................................................... (Pgs. 50-52) 

C. Albemarle Commission - Evacuation Criteria ...................................   (Pgs. 53-67) 

D. EMS Reports ........................................................................................ (Pgs. 68-78) 

E. Community Services Block Grant Program ................................... (Attachment B) 

 

ITEM 10. Other Matters (For discussion and possible action) 

 

ITEM 11. Adjourn 

Page 3 of 78



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:    3.A 

 

INFORMATION 

 

Meeting Date:   January 20
th

, 2015 

Attachments:   1 

Submitted By: Judy Renshaw 
 

ITEM TITLE:   Presentation 

 

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 
Ms. Renshaw would like to give a brief update on the Friends of the Library 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Information only 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 4 of 78



Page 5 of 78



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:    4.A 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

 
 

Meeting Date:   January 20
th

, 2015 

Attachments:   2 (5 Pages) 

Submitted By: Planning Department 
 

 

 

ITEM TITLE:   Amendment to Building Inspections and Planning 

Department Fee Schedule 

  
 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

In anticipation of the location (Sandy Hook and North Mill Dam roads) of two solar farms 

the attached amended fee schedule address the building permit costs for this land use.  NC 

Utilities Commission held a public hearing for each site on December 11, 2014 in the 

upstairs courtroom of the Historic Camden County Courthouse.  Planning Department has 

talked to North Carolina Sustainable Energy, canvassed several municipalities on their 

permit fees for solar farms (attached), counted number of inspections that would be 

required and is recommending the fee indicated in the attached fees schedule. 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Staff recommends approval of amended fee schedule for solar farms at a cost of $.50 

per panel with a minimum permit fee of $250.00 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 6 of 78



   

JURISDICTION FEE SCHEDULE 

PERMIT FEE BASED ON ECOPLEXUS 

PLAN 

86,400 panels 

Pasquotank County 
$5/panel  for first 500 

$1/panel over 500 
$88,400 

Bertie County 
$0.35 panel + $1,000 

electrical permit 
$31,240 

Pitt County $200 + $0.50/panel $43,400 

Catawba County $0.0058 x cost of facility 
$202,797 – full value 

$40,559.40 – tax value (20%) 

Robeson County 

$5/transformer 

$5/inverter 

$5/DC & AC disconnect 

$5/rack & string harness 

Unavailable 

Currituck County 

(recommendations) 

$200 + $0.25/panel 

$200 + $0.50/panel 

$200 + $0.75/panel 

$200 + $1.00/panel 

$21,800 

$43,400 

$65,000 

$86,600 

Montgomery county $800 per megawatt  

Beaufort County $00.25 per panel  

 

 

 

Page 7 of 78



 Inspections & Planning Dept. Fee Schedule 

 Revised July 1, 2014 

 Page 1 of 4 

CAMDEN COUNTY 
BUILDING INSPECTIONS AND PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

PERMIT FEE SCHEDULE 
 

BUILDING PERMIT FEES 

 

RESIDENTIAL, MODULAR, & COMMERCIAL CONSTRUCTION (UP TO 20,000 SQ. FEET) 

 Minimal Required New Construction Permit Fees:  (1) State Fee (Residential only) 10.00; (2) 

Base Building Fee 0.25 cents per square foot; (3) Electrical Fee 0.15 cents per square foot; (4) 

Plumbing Fee 75.00; (5) Mechanical Fee 100.00; (6) Insulation Fee 75.00.    Optional Fees:  

Temporary Power Pole 75.00.  Commercial buildings are subject to other fees listed here after. 
     

 Base Fee Up to 20,000 Sq. Ft. $0.25/Sq. Ft. Each Sq. Ft. over 20,000 $0.15/Sq. Ft. 

 Minimum Fee $100.00 State Fee $10.00 
     

ELECTRICAL    

 Residential Over 500 SQFT $0.15/Sq. Ft. Service Repair $75.00 

 Minimum Fee $75.00 Service Change $75.00 

 Temporary Service $75.00 Mfg. Home Service $75.00 
     

PLUMBING    

 Plumbing (New Installs) $75.00 Plumbing (Repairs) $75.00 
     

MECHANICAL    

 Minimum Fee $100.00 Additional Units $25.00 

 Repair / Service Change $75.00 Same Size Change Out $0.00 
     

INSULATION    

 Minimum Fee $75.00   
     

NATURAL GAS HOOKUP (RESIDENTIAL & COMMERCIAL STRUCTURES)  

 Minimum Fee (structures existing prior to 2003) $35.00  

 Minimum Fee (structures built on/after Jan 1, 2003) $75.00  
     

MANUFACTURED HOMES    

 Singlewide:  $250.00            Doublewide:  $350.00            Triplewide:  $400.00  
     

ADDITIONS - Includes Service Systems   

 Up to 400 Square Feet $150.00 Over 400 Square Feet $0.37/Sq. Ft. 
     

SWIMMING POOLS & SPAS    

 Inground $150.00 Above Ground $50.00 
     

DETACHED GARAGES, STORAGE, AND UTILITY BUILDINGS  

 Minimum Fee/Under 400 Sq. Ft. $75.00 Over 400 Sq. Ft. $0.18/Sq. Ft. 
     

CARPORT / POLE BARN / POLE SHED   

 Minimum Fee $75.00 Over 834 Sq. Ft. $0.09/Sq. Ft. 
     

SINGLE UTILITY INSPECTION    

 Trade Permit Minimum Fee $50.00   
 

  

Page 8 of 78



 Inspections & Planning Dept. Fee Schedule 

 Revised July 1, 2014 

 Page 2 of 4 

SIGNS    

 16 Square Feet or Less $0.00 17 - 32 Sq. Ft. on One Side $50.00 

 Over 32 Sq. Ft. on One Side $100.00 Electrical on/for/around Sign $50.00 

     

DEMOLITION Fire, Safety, & EPA Regs  

 Pre-inspection required for safety and hazardous materials and referral to proper 

channels if found. 

$75.00 

     

ALTERATIONS / REPAIRS / IMPROVEMENTS 

 Up to $5000 Gross Retail Price 

Over $5000 Gross Retail 

  $75.00 

50% Additions Fees 

     

 Alterations include work within existing structures and upgrading existing services and do NOT 

include Additions, New Construction, Proving Power to structures not previously having power 

or New Service to existing buildings. 

     

RENOVATION FEES    

 Renovations ½ New Construction Fees  

     

 Farm Buildings are exempt UNLESS: 

 Any electrical installation is performed 

 Any portion of building is used for sleeping quarters 

 Building is used for business rather than personal use of farmer and immediate family 

     

MOVING OF ANY BUILDING WITHIN OR INTO THE COUNTY 

 Minimum New Construction Fees  

     

WIND ENERGY SYSTEMS   

 Turbines $2,000.00   

 Reinspections $100.00 each   

     

SOLAR FARMS 

          Panels                                            $.50 per panel (minimum $250) 

 

COMMERCIAL PERMIT PRICES (extras) 

  

     

 MECHANICAL:  PLUMBING:  

 Walk-in Cooler $40.00 ea. Minimum Permit Fee $75.00 

 Commercial Cooking Hood $40.00 ea. Per fixture, trap, or similar devices $5.00 

 HVAC Fire damper/smoke damper $5.00 ea. Per sprinkler head $5.00 

     

 ELECTRICAL    

 Electric duct heater $10.00 ea. 

 Temporary Service w/ Trailer $100.00 ea. 

 0-100 Each Receptacle/Switch/Fixture $75.00 

 Each additional opening $0.10 ea. 

 Subpanel, transformer, generator $20.00 ea. 

Page 9 of 78



 Inspections & Planning Dept. Fee Schedule 

 Revised July 1, 2014 

 Page 3 of 4 

 Fuel dispensers, "freestanding" parking lot light poles, manufactured home pedestals $5.00 ea. 

 Exhaust fans/water heater/RAC/Spa/Motors and machinery not specified $5.00 ea. 
 

 

COMMERCIAL PERMIT PRICES (extras - Continued) 

     

 GAS    

 Minimum Permit Fee $50.00   

 Per outlet $5.00   

     

NEGLIGENCE FEES    

 Inspection Negligence Fee (Applies To): 

 Inspections called for but not ready 

 Skipping any applicable mandatory inspection 

 Re-Inspections called for without first correcting discrepancies noted by inspector 

 Wrong sub-contractor other than on Trade Affidavit 

$100.00 

   

 No Permit Negligence Fee (Applies To): $Varies 

  Building or Trade Related Activities performed without first obtaining and paying 

for a building permit.  Shall result in overall doubling of permit fee. 

 

     

BUILDING PERMIT FEES DUE AT TIME OF ISSUANCE  

 All Building Permit fees must be paid in full at time of permit issuance. 

 Applicants will be notified within 3-5 days after building permit application has 

been processed, reviewed, and approved.  At that time permit fees are due.   

 No building permit will be issued without payment of permit fees due. 

 

     

     

LAND USE DEVELOPMENT FEES    

     

LAND USE DEVELOPMENT FEES DUE AT TIME OF APPLICATION  

  All fees for Land Use / Development MUST be paid in full at time of APPLICATION. 

     

 Zoning Permit $25.00 Temporary Use Permit $250.00 

 Conditional Use Permit $400.00 Variance $500.00 

 Special Use Permit $400.00 Ordinance Amendment Request $500.00 

     

 Rezoning Fee    

  Up to 10 Acres $650.00   

  Over 10 Acres $650.00 Plus $10 Per Acre  

     

 Interpretation Challenge / Appeal $250.00 *   

     

 Subdivision Fee    

  Major Subdivision    

  Sketch Plan Level 

 Preliminary Plan Level 

 Final Plan Level 

$150.00 

$200.00 

$50.00 

Per Lot 

Per Lot 

Per Lot ** 

 

Page 10 of 78



 Inspections & Planning Dept. Fee Schedule 

 Revised July 1, 2014 

 Page 4 of 4 

  Minor Subdivision $200.00 Per Lot **  

  Private Access Subdivision $200.00 Per Lot **  
 

 

 Planned Unit Development    

     

  Concept Plan See Rezoning   

  Master Plan and Amendments $1,000.00 (Includes Conditional Use Permit Fee) 

  Preliminary Plat Level $200.00 Per Lot  

  Final Plat Level $50.00 Per Lot  

     

 Commercial Site Plan Review $25.00   

     

 Stormwater Review Fees / Deposit    

     

  Major Subdivision 

  (more than 5 acres) 

 Minor Commercial Site Plan Review 

  (3 acres or less) 

 Major Commercial Site Plan Review *** 

  (more than 3 acres) 

$6,000.00 

 

$3,700.00 

 

$5,400.00 

 

     

 LAND DISTURBING ACTIVITY   

     

 Fill Permit $50.00   

     

 NOTES:    

     

 *  Subject to refund in the case of a successful appeal if so ordered by the Board of Adjustment 

     

 **  For major subdivisions / PUD, a fifteen dollar ($15) credit per lot will be granted if the final 

plat is submitted both on Mylar in accordance with the Unified Development Ordinance and on 

diskette, in a format compatible (shape file / geodatabase) with the County's Geographic 

Information System (GIS) software. 

     

 ***  The County stormwater review deposit / fee will be set up as an escrow wherein the 

applicant recovers any deposits in excess of actual costs incurred, or replenishes the escrow if 

costs drop below $1000 prior to project approval. 

     

  

 A refund of Land Use Development fees will be given if an application is withdrawn prior to 

commencement of the approval process (staff review for Zoning Permits;  Board * agenda for all 

other items).  No refund shall be given after any portion of the approval process has begun (e.g., 

zoning permit issued or item placed on Board agenda.) 

  

     

 * - Board of Adjustments, Planning Board, or Board of Commissioners 

 

Page 11 of 78



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   4.B 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

 

Meeting Date:   January 20, 2015 

Attachments:   4 Attachments 

Submitted By: Dan Porter 
 

 

 

ITEM TITLE:  Economic Development Incentive – Town 

Center Phase 1 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

The purpose of this Public Hearing is to receive public comment on a proposal to 

extend an economic development incentive to Camden Realty Group for the 

purpose of constructing infrastructure and a commercial building at on Lot 3 of the 

Town Center Project, Camden, NC 27921. 

 

On November 20, 2014 the county received a request from Camden Realty Group 

for a considerable amount of assistance for Phase 1 of their Town Center project.  

This first phase is to develop an out parcel along NC 343 with a 12,000 sq. ft. 

housing four tenant spaces.  Staff has reviewed the request and recommended 

assistance through the recently approved Economic Development Incentive 

Program. 

 

The incentive offer consists of a cash grant totaling $55,354, provided from the 

Camden Economic Development fund. The incentive will be in the form of cash 

reimbursed to Camden Realty Group over a 5 year period. The project is expected 

to produce a significant investment in real estate, infrastructure, and equipment in 

excess of $1.2million, create 36 full-time or full-time equivalent jobs with 

competitive wages and benefit packages, and annual sales tax revenue. The County 

will recover the cost and the public will benefit through future property taxes, 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 12 of 78



stimulation of the economy, promotion of business and the creation of jobs in 

Camden County. 

 

A copy of the letter of request, and a description and analysis of the project is 

attached. 

 

The Camden Economic Development Commission reviewed the request and staff 

report on December 9, 2014, and voted to recommend approval of the incentive.  

 

Notice of this public hearing was published Friday, January 9, 2015. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Hear input from the public on this matter. 

 

The Board of Commissioners may, in their discretion, amend the regular agenda following 

the Public Hearing to add Economic Development Incentive- Camden Realty Group under 

New Business 

Page 13 of 78



Economic Incentive Analysis 

Town Center Lot 3 Project 

December 4, 2014 

 

Project Description & Request 

This project is the first outparcel being developed as part of a multi building complex located at 

the key intersection of US 158 and NC 343.  The developer proposes to build a 12,000 square 

foot multi-tenant retail/office building on an out parcel of a larger shopping center project.  The 

estimated investment is $2 million for infrastructure and building, with 36 total jobs created.  

The infrastructure includes automobile access, water service, and stormwater improvements to 

serve the entire complex.  Current provisions for wastewater are to connect the county system 

with limited capacity to service the proposed building only.  At build out the complex will 

include 2 additional out parcels and a site for potentially 30,000 – 40,000 grocery store or multi 

product brand retailer. 

 

The developer has held the property for several years and has attempted but has been unable 

to develop the property until now and is requesting county financial assistance for the first 

phase of the overall project.  The attached letter outlines the assistance requested and 

indicates that the infrastructure costs and regulation continue to be excessive for financial 

feasibility.   

 

Listed below are the items included in the request and the estimated cost of each: 

 Waiver of sewer fees 

  Sewer capacity fees are based on water connections 

  4 - ¾ inch connections @ $7400 each     $29,600 

 Purchase, installation, & maintenance of sewer pump station  $95,000 (est.) 

 Waiver of water tap fees (4- ¾ inch connections @ $4000)   $16,000 

 Waiver of all building permits, plan review, and county fees  $6,000 

 County to install 8 inch water line at no charge    $32,000 (est.) 

 County to install fire hydrant       $2,800 (est.) 

 Property tax relief or equivalent – lot 3 – for 5 years   $60,000 (est.) 

  (Based on simple calculation $2 million value at today’s tax rate)  

Total           $241,400 

 

County Economic Incentive Program 

The county’s economic incentive policy is based on a number of variables including number and 

quality of jobs, capital investment, county targeted business and locations per the attached 

score sheet.  It is important to note that the request is from the project developer, not the 

Page 14 of 78



tenant businesses.  This makes it difficult to project specific number of jobs, wages, and 

benefits.  The incentive analysis is based on conversation with the principal of the development 

group with the understanding that: 1) the analysis and proposed incentive will be reviewed by 

the development group  to revise and the county to recalculate with any revisions; 2) once 

approved the assumptions will become performance thresholds included in the final binding 

contractual agreement; 3) the tenant businesses must be a part of the final agreement. 

 

The attached Evaluation Criteria evaluation for phase 1 of the Town Center project indicates a 

score of 68 points resulting in a Level 4 Incentive.  The resulting financial incentive totals 

$55,354 over a 5 year period.  Discounting the request for 5 years of tax relief since this is not 

allowed by state law; the requested assistance is $181,400.  The incentive represents 31% of 

the request. 

 

The County Economic Incentive Policy should be reviewed in whole as it describes monitoring, 

claw back and other important timing issues. 

 

With regard to this specific project the commission may consider the importance of this project 

in creating the needed impetus to complete the build out of the overall complex including a 

grocery store or other major retailer, as well as synergies for development of other properties 

in the US 158 corridor.  The policy provides such flexibility in 

 Section III – General guidelines: 

a. This policy only addresses one form of incentive that the County may offer: 

financial grant awards determined by property tax amounts. The County may, at 

its discretion, offer other kinds of incentives to companies in addition to—or 

instead of—this type of financial incentive. 

 

  

 

 

 

 

      

 

 

 

 

Page 15 of 78



ECONOMIC INCENTIVE EVALUATION CRITERIA 

 

JOBS  Points  

Number of jobs created   

1-5 8 

6-15  10 

16-25  12 

26-35  14 

36-45  16 

46 - 100  18 

Over 100 20 

Maximum points  20  

Comments: Projected Tenants – Pharmacy-8; Insuance-6 (existing); Physician- 12; Café-

14 

Hiring Camden County residents (number of positions company seeks to fill in county 

through approved local hiring process)  

1-4 3 

5-9  5  

10-14  7  

15-19  9  

20 and above  11  

Maximum points  11  

Comments: Requires some if not all tenants to utilize workforce development board for 

initial recruiting efforts  

Wage level of new jobs  

100% of county average or more  5  

Greater than the lower of county average or state average  7  

Greater than the higher of county average or state average 9  

Maximum points  9  

Comments: It will be difficult to force tenants on wages, however in most cases combining 

salaries of lower wage and higher wage employees may achieve this criteria. The higher of 

the 2 averages is the state at $818. 

Quality of new jobs  

Partial employer paid health insurance  2  

Total employer paid health insurance  4  

Retirement benefits  2  

Paid vacation  2  

Maximum points  8  

Comments: As above projecting tenant’s benefits is difficult.  A least one tenant provides all 

benefits. Score represents moderate goal achievement. 

  

Page 16 of 78



 

CAPITAL INVESTMENT  Points 

Level of capital investment                         $50,000 – $249,000 3 

$250,000 - $500,000 5 

$500,001 - $750,000  6  

$750,001 - $999,999  8  

$1,000,000 - $2,999,999  10 

$3,000,000 - $4,9999,9999 11 

$5,000,000 - $10,000,000 12 

Over $10,000,000 13 

Comments: Estimate of building and infrastructure cost is $2,000,000 

 

Maximum points  13  

INDUSTRY CLUSTERS AND BUSINESS TYPE  Points 

Company’s in-county purchases and/or sales as percentage of 

total purchases and/or sales  

10-20%  

 

 

7  

20-30%  9  

30% and above  11  

Maximum points  11  

Comments: Based on tenant sales and services, not purchasing. 

Target clusters 6  

Company headquarters located in county 4  

Woman/minority owned business 4  

Comments: Pharmacy, physician, and restaurant are all targeted businesses. 

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT  Points  

Environmental features  

Green facility  4  

Green operations  4  

Maximum points  8  

Building re-use  3  

Location in target area 3 

 

Summary of Points 

 

Category Number of points available Number of points achieved 

Jobs 48 38 

Capital Investment 13 10 

Industry Cluster/Business 

Type 

25 17 

Environmental impact 14 3 

Total points 100 68 

  

Page 17 of 78



Number of points needed for each incentive level 

 

Total points Incentive Level 

25-39 1 

40-49 2 

50-59 3 

60-69 4 

70-79 5 

80 and above 6 

 

Incentive award as percentage of property tax 

 

Year Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 4 Level 5 Level 6 

Year 1 50% 70% 75% 80% 90% 90% 

Year 2 40% 60% 65% 70% 80% 80% 

Year 3 30% 50% 55% 60% 70% 75% 

Year 4 20% 40% 45% 50% 60% 75% 

Year 5 30% 35% 40% 50% 60 60% 

Comment: It should be noted that a 2 point improvement will move the project to the 

next level.  An 8 point decrease will move it down. 

 

 

Incentive Calculation 

 

Projected vacant land value per tax revaluation appraiser $200,000/acre 

      2.4 acres $480,000 

Capital Investment building & infrastructure   $2,000,000 

Total Projected Value      $2,480,000 

(Actual building value may be less depending on value placed on infrastructure) 

 

Annual tax at current $0.60 per $100    $14,880 

Projected value at revenue neutral rate $0.72 per $100 $17,856 

 

Year 1       $14,284 

Year 2       $12,499 

Year 3       $10,713 

Year 4       $8,928 

Year 5       $8,928 

Total Incentive      $55,354 

 

 

 

 

Page 18 of 78



Page 19 of 78



Page 20 of 78



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   5.A. 

 

New Business 

 

Meeting Date:   January 20, 2015 

Attachments:   2 (7 Pages) 

Submitted By: Michael Renshaw, County 

Manager 
 

ITEM TITLE:   Point of Dispensing Site 

Memorandum of Understanding 

 

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

In 2014 the Camden United Methodist Church, through its Disaster 

Relief Committee, made application to the Duke Endowment for a 

grant totaling $60,000, of which $55,000 was to fund the installation of 

an emergency power generator to power the Fellowship Hall for use 

as a Point of Dispensing (POD) site in the event of a natural disaster 

or emergency.  On August 4, 2014 the Board of Commissioners 

supported CUMC’s grant application through adoption of Resolution 

2014-08-02 (attached). 

 

Working in consultation with the Pasquotank-Camden Emergency 

Management Coordinator, Christy Saunders, the CUMC leadership 

has proposed to provide the use of Fellowship Hall as a POD site to 

provide for the dispensing of medicine, food, and water to the 

Camden community.  The POD site may also be used to shelter 

emergency responders in the event of a natural disaster or other 

emergency that would require such a facility.  There currently is no 

such facility in Camden County. 

 

In November 2014 CUMC leadership learned that their Duke 

Endowment grant request had been fully funded.  CUMC has selected 

a dual-fuel (natural gas and propane) generator and installation 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 21 of 78



contractor, and installation is expected to commence and be 

completed during the months of February/March, weather 

permitting.  The generator and associated components are under a 

two year warranty period from time of installation and covers 

maintenance service, inspections, and repairs. 

 

The County Manager, in cooperation with the CUMC leadership and 

Pasquotank-Camden Emergency Management, has developed the 

attached formal Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) which 

outlines requirements and responsibilities of CUMC, Camden 

County, and Pasquotank-Camden Emergency Management for the 

use of the facility.  Included within this MOU is a funding 

commitment on the part of Camden County to provide funding in an 

amount not to exceed $1,500 annually for the fuel costs associated 

with required generator testing.  Such funding shall be contingent 

upon Board of Commissioners approval and will commence on July 1, 

2015 and each subsequent fiscal year that the MOU remains in effect. 

 

The attached MOU has been reviewed by the Camden County 

Attorney, who has approved the document’s legal form.  As parties to 

this MOU, the CUMC Board of Trustees and Pasquotank-Camden 

Emergency Management (via approval and execution of the 

Pasquotank County Board of Commissioners) will also sign the MOU.  

The proposed MOU will be effective from execution date by all parties 

until it is terminated by either CUMC, Camden County, or 

Pasquotank-Camden Emergency Management upon 90 days written 

notice to the other parties.    

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

The County Manager recommends that the Camden Board of 

Commissioners approve the attached Memorandum of Understanding 

for Facility Use in a Disaster or Event. 

 

Page 22 of 78



 

 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING  

FOR FACILITY USE IN A DISASTER OR EVENT 

 
This Memorandum of Understanding is entered into by and among Camden County (“County”), 
Camden-Pasquotank Emergency Management (“EM”) and Camden United Methodist Church 
(“Facility”).  
 
The purpose of this Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is to define the relationship among 
the County, EM and the Facility during an emergency/crisis and/or natural disaster.  
 
 WHEREAS, the County and EM desires to partner with the Facility for the provision of a 
local Point of Dispensing (POD) site in the interest of the public welfare and safety in the event 
of an emergency and/or natural disaster; and  
 

WHEREAS, a natural disaster includes flooding, ice storm, tornado, hurricane, or other 
naturally occurring weather related events.  An emergency/crisis means an occurrence or 
condition which may result in an actual or imminent threat of harm to public health and/or safety 
or may result in future harm in the affected population; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Facility acknowledges the intent to serve as a local Point of Dispensing 
Site (POD) for critical supplies.  A POD is a location where supplies will be dispensed to the 
public; and 

  
WHEREAS, the Facility acknowledges the intent to serve the needs of the Camden 

community during an emergency/crisis and or natural disaster, to the extent of its ability, upon 
request of the Camden-Pasquotank Emergency Management (EM) Coordinator or designee; 
and 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties to this Memorandum of Understanding hereby agree as 
follows: 

 
The Facility agrees to the following: 

 
1. Allow use of its facilities, grounds and equipment: 

After it is determined that the site will need to be activated and upon the request of EM 
and/ or designee, the Facility will permit the use of its facilities, grounds and equipment 
to EM and its associates, to the extent of its ability, within 12 hours of the request and for 
the time period being requested.  Facility use may include, but it not limited to: 

 
2. Designate three points-of-contact in case of an emergency: 

i. An Administrative point-of-contact will serve as the primary point-of-contact.  This 
person should have the authority and ability to open the facility/building at any time. 

ii. A Facilities point-of-contact will work with EM for logistic needs. 
iii. A Security point-of-contact will work with EM and local law enforcement in making 

security plans.  This person should have the authority and ability to open the 
building(s).  

 
3. Allow facilities to be visited by members of EM and local law enforcement for the 

development and maintenance of emergency operations plans and mass-dispensing 
plans.  Visits will be made after receiving prior approval from the primary point-of-
contact. 

Page 23 of 78



 

 

 
4. Allow the facility/building to be listed in confidential Emergency Response Plans.   

 
5. List primary and backup point-of-contacts and notify EM of changes in this contact 

information. 
 

6. Encourage personnel to receive training with the Camden-Pasquotank Emergency 
Management to become volunteers with the Community Emergency Response Team 
(CERT). 
 

7. Provide the County with periodic invoices detailing costs associated with the required 
testing and maintenance of the Facility’s emergency power generator.     

 
 
 
Camden-Pasquotank Emergency Management agrees to the following: 
 

1. Provide a point-of-contact person to answer questions or concerns about these 
arrangements.  

 
2. After the event and if possible through local government claims, work with appropriate 

reimbursing Federal/State Agencies to ensure the replacement or reimbursement to the 
Facility and County for any food, supplies, and utilities (including telephone charges, 
faxes, copying machines, copy paper, etc.) that may be used by EM.  

 
3. Assure that any post-event clean-up is performed.  

 
4. Provide CERT and POD training to Facility members that are interested in volunteering. 

 
5. Ensure that plans are in place for POD and other facilities use.    

 
 
Camden County agrees to the following: 
 

1. Provide a point-of-contact person to respond to questions or concerns about the 
responsibilities enumerated in this Memorandum of Understanding. 
 

2. Commencing on July 1, 2015 and continuing for the term of this Memorandum of 
Understanding and contingent upon approval of the Board of Commissioners, provide an 
annual funding contribution in an amount not to exceed $1,500 in support of required 
testing and maintenance costs associated with the Facility’s emergency power 
generator.   

 
 
Time of Performance 
 
This agreement shall be effective from the date it is signed until it is terminated by one of the 
previously listed parties.  One or all of the parties may terminate this MOU at any time by giving 
90 days written notice of intention to the other parties.  This MOU may be immediately 
terminated upon consent of all parties.   

Page 24 of 78



 

 

 
 
Liability 
 

1.  The Facility does hereby agree to indemnify and hold harmless the County and Camden-
Pasquotank County Emergency Management from any and all claims, demands, and 
judgments arising from this Memorandum of Understanding, including reasonable 
attorney’s fees in defense of any and all claims, demands, expenses, liabilities, and 
losses as a result of incidents or damages to any facilities, which may arise out of any 
acts or failure to act by Camden-Pasquotank EM, Camden County, its employees, 
agents, volunteers or contractors in connection with their performances under the terms 
of this Memorandum of Understanding. 

 
2. The Facility shall be liable for any and all claims, demands, expenses, liabilities, and 

losses as a result of incidents or damage to the facilities which may arise out of any acts 
or failures to act by the Facility, its employees, agents or contractors, in connection with 
the performance of the services provided by the Facility under the terms of this 
Memorandum of Understanding. 

 
The parties to this Memorandum of Understanding hereby agree to any and all provisions as 
stipulated above.  
 
 
Adopted this 20th day of January, 2015. 
 
 
     CAMDEN COUNTY 
 
    
      
     By: ________________________________ 
      
      Michael McLain, Chairman 
      Camden County Board of Commissioners 
 
 
Attest: ________________________ 
 
 Angela Wooten 
 Clerk to the Board 
 
 
     CAMDEN UNITED METHODIST CHURCH 
 
 
   
     By: _________________________________ 
       
      Marty Van Buren, Board of Trustees Chairman 
 
       

Page 25 of 78



 

 

By: __________________________________ 
 
      James C. Brincefield III, Disaster Relief Chairman 
 
     By: _________________________________ 
 
      Karen Seigh, Trustee 
 
     By: _________________________________ 
 
      Barry Daniel, Trustee 
 
     By: _________________________________ 
       
      Randy Krainiak, Trustee 
 
     By: _________________________________ 
 
      Gary Hill, Trustee 
 
 
Witness: _______________________ 
     
      
 

PASQUOTANK COUNTY 
 
 
     By: ________________________________ 
 
      Joseph S. Winslow, Jr., Chairman 
      Pasquotank County Board of Commissioners 
 
 
Attest: __________________________ 
 
 Karen Jennings 
 Clerk to the Board 
 
 
 
  

Page 26 of 78



 

 

 
       

REPRESENTATIVE CONTACT LIST 
 
 
Facility Representative 

Printed Name Title 
Cell 

Number 
Email Signature Date 

      

      

      

 
 
Emergency Management Representative 

Printed Name Title 
Cell 

Number 
Email Signature Date 

      

 
 
Camden County Representative 

Printed Name Title 
Cell 

Number 
Email Signature Date 

      

 
 
 
Law Enforcement Representative (Security) 

Printed Name Title 
Cell 

Number 
Email Signature Date 

      

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 27 of 78



Page 28 of 78



Page 29 of 78



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   6.A 

 

 CONSENT AGENDA 

 

Meeting Date:   January 20
th

, 2015 

Attachments:   1 (Attachment A) 

Submitted By: Clerk to the Board 
 

ITEM TITLE:   Draft Meeting Minutes 
 

 

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 
 2014-11-24 BOC Work Session Draft Minutes 

 2014-11-24 BOC Public Hearing Draft Minutes 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Review & Approve 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 30 of 78



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   6.B  

 

 Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date:   January 20, 2015 

Attachments:   3 

Submitted By: Budget & Finance Officers 
 

ITEM TITLE:   Budget Amendments 

 

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

2014-15-BA015 Private Donation 

2014-15-BA016 DSS Trust Account 

2014-15-BA017 McClees Lobbying Contract 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Approve Budget Amendments 

 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 31 of 78



Page 32 of 78



Page 33 of 78



Page 34 of 78



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   6.C  

 

 Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date:   January 20, 2015 

Attachments:   3 (10 Pages) 

Submitted By: School Admin 
 

ITEM TITLE:   School Budget Amendments 

 

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

Other Local Current Expense Fund 

Capital Outlay Fund 

Local Current Expense Fund 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Approve Budget Amendments 

 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 35 of 78



Page 36 of 78



Page 37 of 78



Page 38 of 78



Page 39 of 78



Page 40 of 78



Page 41 of 78



Page 42 of 78



Page 43 of 78



Page 44 of 78



Page 45 of 78



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   6.D 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

Meeting Date:   January 20
th

, 2015 

Attachments:   1 (1 Page) 

Submitted By: Dellie Spaulding, Tax Specialist 
 

ITEM TITLE:   Tax Dept.  

 Monthly Collection Report 

   December 2014 

 

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

Taxes collected for ad valorem (real estate), personal business 

properties, vehicle, and other miscellaneous taxes.  Also included are 

payments received via the Internet. 

 

 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

FOR COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' APPROVAL  

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 46 of 78



Page 47 of 78



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   9. A-E 

 

 INFORMATION 

 

Meeting Date:   January 20
th

, 2015 

Attachments:   5 (30 pages) 

Submitted By: Various Department Heads 
 

ITEM TITLE:   INFORMATION 
 

 

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 
Sheriff – December Monthly Report   

RC&D Winter Newsletter 

Albemarle Commission - Evacuation Criteria 

EMS Reports 
Community Services Block Grant Program 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Information Only 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 48 of 78



Property 

Crimes

Breaking 

& 

Entering Larceny

Crimes 

Against 

Persons

Animal 

Control 

Calls Assaults Mental Commit. Drug Arrests

Current: 14-Dec 5 1 0 5 41 0 2 1

Last Month: 14-Nov 1 0 4 9 51 0 3 1

Last Year: 13-Dec 3 7 10 9 46 4 2 1

Traffic 

Offense

Other 

Arrest

Juvenile 

Arrest

Total 

Arrest Reports

Papers 

Served

Armed 

Robbery

Calls 

Answered Building Checks

Avg. Jail 

Population

63 9 0 73 100 106 0 717 332

65 8 0 74 109 153 0 831 253 7

73 13 0 87 139 103 0 1253 451 0

717

23.9

9876

12335

11853

NONE

Trainings

Date

Camden County Sheriff's Office Monthly Stats
December-14

Sheriff Tony Perry

Calls Answered:

Average:

Calls for Service 2014:

Calls for Service 2013:

Calls for Service 2012:

Page 49 of 78



1

Angela Wooten

From: Albemarle RC&D Council <emailsentby@icontact.com>
Sent: Tuesday, January 06, 2015 2:06 PM
To: info@camdencountync.gov
Subject: Albemarle RC&D Winter Newsletter

Albemarle Resource Conservation 

& Development Council  

 
Warwick Creek. Photo: Mark Powell 

 

 

Winter 2015 

Wisely Conserving Natural 
Resources & Creating 

Opportunities for Positive 
Economic & Community 

Development 
  

  

Project Updates  
  

All Ten Counties 
The ARC&D worked with Soil and Water Conservation Districts (SWCD), 
county governments and state legislators to obtain a $250,000 grant 
from NC Division of Water Resources to clear storm debris from rivers, 
streams and canals in 19 eastern NC counties including the council's 
ten counties around the Albemarle and Pamlico Sounds. Recent 
tornadoes and storms caused significant damage to drainage systems, 
which has increased flooding in many areas. The NC Division of Soil and 
Water Conservation is managing the $250,000 grant from Water 
Resources.    
  
In Chowan, Perquimans and Pasquotank Counties, sections of  Burnt 
Mill Creek, Upper Perquimans River and Little River will be cleared of 
debris.  For more information contact the Albemarle RC&D Council or 
county SWCD.  
  

Little River Watershed Restoration Initiative 
The ARC&D is working with local partners to finalize a watershed 
restoration plan using EPA’s nine-step process. This activity is funded 
by a Clean Water Act 205J grant to the Albemarle Commission.  The 
Little River watershed was once rich in biodiversity with key 
anadromous fish areas, and swamp forests critical to support native 
fish and wildlife, mitigate flooding, and protect water quality. 
  

Tyrrell County 
Tyrrell County will receive a $85,500 grant from the NC Public Beach 

  

IN THIS ISSUE 
  
Project updates from 
across the Council's 10-
county area 
  
  

  
  

  
ARC&D Calender  

  
1/15/15 Albemarle RC&D  

Executive Committee Meeting  
6:00 pm  

730 N. Granville Street, Edenton 
(Suite B)  

    
2/3/15 Albemarle RC&D  

Quarterly Council Meeting  
6:30 pm  

730 N. Granville Street, Edenton 
(Suite B)  

    
4/16/15 Albemarle RC&D  

Page 50 of 78



2

and Coastal Waterfront Access Program to improve public access to 
Veteran's Park on the Scuppernong River across from the Columbia 
waterfront. The ARC&D assisted with project design and grant writing. 
The council will also assist the county with project management during 
construction.  
  

Chowan County 
Chowan County is improving public access at Pembroke Creek Park in 
Edenton. The ARC&D assisted the county with project design and grant 
writing. It is also providing technical support for the construction 
phase.  The project is funded through a $149,720 grant from the NC 
Public Beach and Coastal Waterfront Access Program with matching 
funds from the county. 
  

 
A new bulkhead will protect the park's shoreline from erosion.  

  

Washington County 
The Town of Plymouth has renovated a 50' pier behind City Hall  on the 
Roanoke River. The ARC&D provided design and grant writing support 
for the project. The project is funded through a $32,950 grant from 
the NC Public Beach and Coastal Waterfront Access Program with 
matching funds from the town.   
  

 
The renovated 50' pier behind Town Hall is a component of a multi-

year effort to renovate the Plymouth waterfront.  
  

Perquimans County 
The Town of Hertford is constructing a nine-slip marina on the 
Perquimans River. The ARC&D provided design and grant writing 
support for the project. It is also assisting with project management. 
The project is funded through grants from the NC Public Beach and 
Coastal Waterfront Access Program, NC Boating Infrastructure Grant 
Program, and NC Rural Center STEP grant program with matching funds 
from the town. 
  

Executive Committee Meeting  
6:00 pm  

730 N. Granville Street, Edenton 
(Suite B)  

    
5/5/15 Albemarle RC&D  

Quarterly Council Meeting  
6:30 pm   

730 N. Granville Street, Edenton 
(Suite B)  

    
6/18/15 Albemarle RC&D  

Executive Committee Meeting  
6:00 pm  

730 N. Granville Street, Edenton 
(Suite B)  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

     

  
  
  

 
  
  

Contact Us:   
  

Albemarle RC&D Council  
730 N. Granville St., Suite B  

Edenton, NC  27932  
  

Phone: (252) 482-7437 ext, 4  
Fax: (252) 482-3428  

  
albemarlercandd@yahoo.com  

  
  
  

Page 51 of 78



3

 
The new nine-slip marina includes, water, electricity and sewage 

pump-out for visiting boaters.  
  

Camden County 
The ARC&D is working with Camden Soil and Water Conservation 
District and the US Fish and Wildlife Service to develop an outdoor 
environmental education classroom at Camden High School.  
  

Multiple Counties 
Schools in Camden, Chowan, Dare, Hyde and Tyrrell counties received 
Davis Vantage Pro2 weather stations which combine a rain collector, 
temperature and humidity sensor and anemometer into one package. 
The wireless stations allow the schools to share weather data on the 
Internet. The schools also received Advanced Wind Experiment Kits to 
use in STEM curriculum. The equipment was provided by the 
Renewable Energy Economic Solutions Project funded by the NC Rural 
Economic Development Center. 
  
Click here to see real-time weather data for Tyrrell County:  
www.weatherlink.com/user/chstyrrell/ 
  
Links to real-time weather data from other schools will be added as 
they come online. 
  
  

  
The Albemarle RC&D Council is a 501c3 private non-profit 
organization that serves the people of Camden, Chowan, 
Currituck, Dare, Gates, Hyde, Pasquotank, Perquimans, 

Tyrrell & Washington Counties. 
  

All programs and services of the Albemarle RC&D Council 
are offered on a non-discriminatory basis, without regard 

to race, color, national origin, religion, sexual 
orientation age, marital or family status, disability or  

political beliefs.  
  

For more information on the council’s programs and 
projects please contact us at 

albemarlercandd@yahoo.com or visit us 
at  www.albemarlercd.org 

  

 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  

  

 

This message was sent to info@camdencountync.gov from: Email Marketing by 

Page 52 of 78



Page 53 of 78



Page 54 of 78



Page 55 of 78



EVACUATION CRITERIA 

SPOT 4.0 WORK GROUP JANUARY 20, 2015 

Page 56 of 78



NCDOT Hurricane 
evacuation routes in the 
ARPO region 

NC 12 in Dare, Hyde and Currituck 
Counties 

US 158 in Dare, Currituck, Camden, 
Pasquotank and Gates Counties 

US 17 in Camden Pasquotank, 
Perquimans and Chowan Counties 

NC 168 in Currituck County 

US 64 in Dare, Tyrrell and 
Washington Counties 

US 264 in Dare and Hyde Counties 

 

No STRAHNET routes are located  in 
the ARPO region 

 

Page 57 of 78



Local Government Authority to issue evacuations  

  

 § 166A-19.22. Municipal or county declaration of state of emergency. 

 (a) Declaration. – A state of emergency may be declared by the governing body of a  municipality or county, if either of these finds that an emergency exists. Authority 
to declare a state of emergency under this section may also be delegated by ordinance to the mayor of a municipality or to the chair of the board of county 
commissioners of a county. 

 § 166A-19.15.  County and municipal emergency management 

 (f)        Additional Powers. - In carrying out the provisions of this Article each political subdivision is authorized to do the following: 

            (1)        To appropriate and expend funds, make contracts, obtain and distribute equipment, materials, and supplies for emergency management purposes and to 
 provide for  the health and safety of persons and property, including emergency assistance, consistent with this Article. 

            (2)        To direct and coordinate the development of emergency management plans and programs in accordance with the policies and standards set by the 
 Division,  consistent with federal and State laws and regulations. 

           (3)        To assign and make available all available resources for emergency management purposes for service within or outside of the physical limits of the 
 subdivision. 

           (4)        To delegate powers in a local state of emergency declared pursuant to G.S. 166A-19.22. 

           (5)        To coordinate the voluntary registration of functionally and medically fragile persons in need of assistance during an emergency either through a registry 
 established by this subdivision or by the State. All records, data,  information, correspondence, and communications relating to the registration of 
 persons with special needs or of functionally and medically fragile persons obtained pursuant to this subdivision are confidential and are not a public 
 record pursuant to G.S. 132-1 or any other applicable statute, except that this information shall be available to emergency response agencies, as 
 determined by the local emergency management director. This information shall be used only for the purposes set forth in this subdivision. 

  

Page 58 of 78



Evacuation standard 

NC Gen Stat § 136-102.7. Hurricane evacuation standard.  
Evacuation Standard. – The hurricane evacuation standard 
to be used for any bridge or highway construction project 
pursuant to this Chapter shall be no more than 18 hours, 
as recommended by the State Emergency Management 
officials. (2005-275, s. 5.) 

Law enforcement and emergency management also 
prefer an 18- hour maximum clearance time. 

Mandatory evacuations are issued when projected storm 
conditions are predicted to cause the interruption of 
public safety response, loss of utilities, closure of roads 
from high winds / water, and threaten the safety of the 
population in the path of the storm. 

 

 

 

  

  

Table excerpt  from Mid-Currituck Bridge Study Statement of 
Purpose and Need October 2008. Based on the table above, the 
only evacuation scenario which meets the mandated 18-hour 
clearance time is a Category 1-2 storm with 50% tourist 
occupancy which do not occur during the tourist season.  Tourist 
occupancy rates hover around the 95% range during this time. 

Page 59 of 78



NC Coastal Region Evacuation Standard Operating Guide (SOG) 

The SOG was developed to facilitate evacuations across the North 
Carolina’s Coastal Regions.  In the Northern Coastal Plain the SOG 
addresses concerns with simultaneous evacuations in North Carolina and 
Virginia. 
 
Between 200,000 and 300,000 people may need to evacuate the Outer 
Banks of North Carolina, while Virginia could have to move two or three 
times as many evacuees. 
 
Driven by road capacity concerns in Virginia, a Border Traffic  Control  Plan 
(BTCP), commonly called the “Barco Diversion”  was developed.  If  
Commonwealth of Virginia officials request BTCP  implementation due to 
traffic flow degradation, all traffic would be kept  on U.S 158, by 
controlling access to N.C. 168 at the Barco intersection.  U.S. 158 narrows 
from five lanes to two at Barco.    
 
North Carolina officials are concerned with the plan as most visitors to the 
Outer Banks are from Virginia and would want to return via US 17 or Va. 
168. 

Page 60 of 78



Dare County 

• September 2003 Hurricane Isabel –Mandatory evacuation- evacuated approximately 200,000 people 
out of Dare County over a 48 hour period. 

• August of 2004 Hurricane Alex- Mandatory evacuation -evacuated approximately 60,000 people off of 
Hatteras Island over a 24 hour period. 

• September 2005 Hurricane Ophelia – Mandatory evacuation- evacuated approximately 60,000 people 
off of Hatteras Island over a 24 hour period. 

•  September 2010 Hurricane Arthur – Mandatory evacuation- evacuated approximately 60,000 people 
off of Hatteras Island over a 24 hour period. 

• August 2011 Hurricane Irene- Mandatory evacuation- evacuated approximately 250,000 people from 
Dare County in 48 hours 

• July 2014 Hurricane Earl – Mandatory evacuation- evacuated approximately 60,000 from Hatteras Island 
in 24 hours. 

• NC 12, a two-lane highway is used to evacuate Currituck beaches and Hyde County through Dare 
County. In addition, NC 12 is the only way on and off Hatteras Island other than a ferry to Ocracoke 
Island. The only way on and off the island other than ferries to the south.  

• Twice in recent years, storm-driven waves have rendered the road impassable and the Bonner Bridge 
over Oregon Inlet is always at risk of being out of service due to structural integrity issues.  

• Dare County has no hurricane shelters. Closest shelters for citizens or pets are in Roanoke Rapids and 
Jackson, NC. Evacuees needing shelter must drive rural routes to these areas. 

 

 

 

 

Cape Hatteras 

Page 61 of 78



Currituck County 

• September 2003 Hurricane Isabel Mandatory Evacuation for Currituck County 
approximately 12,500 evacuated off of Corolla and the main land  

• September 2005 Tropical Storm Ophelia  Mandatory evacuation declared for Currituck 
Outer Banks Carova  4-wheel drive area approximately 1,750  people evacuated. 

•Hurricane Earl September 2010 approximately 31,280 person were evacuated. Evacuation 
was hindered due to traffic light issues which caused massive backups that led residents 
and visitors to return to their residences/rental homes. 

•August 2011 Hurricane Irene Mandatory evacuation declared for Currituck County 
approximately 42, 500 people evacuated 

•NC 12  is a two-lane highway with a 35 mph speed limit.  NC 12 is also prone to heavy 
flooding which creates difficulty during heavy rains. 

• Closest shelters for citizens or pets are in Roanoke Rapids and Jackson, NC. 

 

 

 

 

Carova, 
the 4 
wheel 
drive 
area, is 
just to 
the north 
of Corolla  

Page 62 of 78



Ferry system 

Hurricane SANDY 

EVACUATION 10/26/2012 10/27/2012 

VEHICLES SPACES* PASSENGERS 

716 885 1929 

Hurricane IRENE 

EVACUATION 8/24/2011 8/25/2011 

VEHICLES SPACES* PASSENGERS 

960 1114 2223 

Hurricane Arthur 

7/2 - Voluntary EVACUATION     

7/3 - Mandatory VEHICLES SPACES* PASSENGERS 

1307 1488 3944 

*A standard vehicle space = 20'  

Ocracoke island, in Hyde County, can only be accessed by Ferry. The Ferry system does not operate once winds reach 30-
35 mph. Once off the island, these cars head north to evacuate via  NC 12 to US 64 or NC 12 to US 158.  They can also 
take the Swan Quarter Ferry to mainland Hyde County and evacuate via US 264. 
 

Page 63 of 78



Table 1-3 and 1‐4, from the Mid-Currituck 
Bridge Study Statement of Purpose and 
Need,  show the base year 2006 and 
projected year 2035 Average Annual Daily 
Traffic (AADT) and daily traffic for three 
peak travel periods along US 158 and NC 
12. The volumes for the three peak travel 
periods, non‐summer weekday, summer 
weekday, and summer weekend were 
derived from the AADT using daily factors 
from hourly traffic counts made 24‐hours 
a day/365 days per year on the Wright 
Memorial Bridge. 

Seasonal traffic 

Page 64 of 78



The Currituck County CTP  2035 Volumes and Capacity 
Deficiencies map  shows NC12 over capacity in 2035.  
Based on  using the seasonal weekday and weekend 
daily traffic numbers, in Table 1-3 on the previous slide, 
both NC 12 and US 158 will be over capacity by 2035 
based on seasonal traffic volumes. 

Page 65 of 78



 
FIGURE 2.3 2010 CHESAPEAKE EXPRESSWAY DAILY TRAFFIC SEASONALITY  

 
The Expressway is a very seasonal facility, serving peak travel 
during the summer peak weekends. The Outer Banks travelers 
who constitute the bulk of the summer peak traffic are 
somewhat unique. The majority of Outer Banks 
accommodations are beach houses that are rented on a weekly 
basis, with Saturday afternoon check-in and Saturday morning 
Check-out. These rental units are in high demand, costing 
thousands to rent and attracting visitors from long-distances, 
such as Washington DC, New Jersey and Pennsylvania.  
 

Note: From the Chesapeake Transportation System Investment Grade Traffic & Revenue 
Study –Integrated Traffic & Revenue Draft Report, June 2012 

NC 168 
Currituck 
County 

Figure 2.3 shows that weekday traffic on the Chesapeake 
Expressway remains relatively constant throughout the year, 
with a sharp peak during Thanksgiving week, and a small, 
spread-out peak in the summer travel season. But Weekend 
traffic experiences a very large sustained peak throughout 
the summer, with Saturdays’ experiencing the largest peak, 
consistent with the Saturday-Saturday weekly rentals.  

Page 66 of 78



Why not issue mandatory evacuation orders earlier? 
 

 

•Evacuation orders are only issued after a complete evaluation of countless factors that make up a very dynamic situation.  
While the decision is made to ensure public safety all aspects, including economic impacts, are considered. 

•Our region will be fortunate to have even 48 hours available for evacuation and many will not move until there is more 
certainty in the hurricane strike forecast. 

•Even times of 24 hours or greater result in torturous individual evacuation commute times especially for those leaving in 
the heart of the evacuation. During Hurricane Floyd evacuations, many residents turned around and returned home; 
many of those who continued ran into problems refueling. 

•Since most storms will come from a southerly direction, even the smallest deviation in storm track 40 hours out may 
make the difference between a total miss or direct hit; or the difference between hitting South Carolina or staying over 
open water and hitting New England. 

•Forward speed of storms can be quite tricky in this part of the Atlantic.  While a hurricane may only be moving at 10 mph 
forward speed at the time evacuation decisions are made, they can rapidly increase forward speed once they reach the 
mid‐Atlantic cutting reaction and preparation time in half. 

•The demand on local resources will be significant in a catastrophic event if those who wish to leave the region are unable 
to navigate the trip due to time constraints. 

Page 67 of 78



Page 68 of 78



Page 69 of 78



Page 70 of 78



Page 71 of 78



Page 72 of 78



Page 73 of 78



Page 74 of 78



Page 75 of 78



Page 76 of 78



Page 77 of 78



Page 78 of 78




